
          

 

 

VERONA WALK 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

DISTRICT 
 

COLLIER COUNTY 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

JUNE 18, 2020 
11:00 A.M. 

 

 

 

 

 

Special District Services, Inc. 
The Oaks Center 

2501A Burns Road 
Palm Beach Gardens, FL 33410 

www.veronawalkcdd.org 
561.630.4922 Telephone 
877.SDS.4922 Toll Free 
561.630.4923 Facsimile 



 
AGENDA 

 VERONA WALK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

Join by ZOOM ACCESS at: 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/88907697138 

Meeting ID: 889 0769 7138 
Dial In at: 1 929 436 2866 

June 18, 2020 
11:00 a.m. 

 
 
A. Call to Order 

B. Pledge of Allegiance 

C. Proof of Publication……………………………………………………………………………………..Page 1 

D. Establish Quorum 

E. Additions or Deletions to Agenda  

F. Comments from the Public  

G. Approval of Minutes 

1. February 20, 2020 Regular Board Meeting.......................................................................................Page 2 

H. Old Business 

1. Consider Resolution No. 2020-01 – Establishing Policies and Procedures for ACC Process……..Page 6 

2. Consider Resolution No. 2020-02 – Encouraging HOA to Adopt Rules & 
Enforcement Procedures Regarding Recreational Boating……………………………………..….Page 21 
 

I. New Business 

1. Discussion Regarding CDD Property Use by Others 

2. Consider Resolution No. 2020-03 – Adopting a Fiscal Year 2020/2021 Proposed Budget………..Page 23 

J. Administrative Matters 

1. District Attorney Update 

2. District Engineer Update 

3. Field Inspector Update 

4. District Manager Update 

a. Financials……………………………………………………………………………………..Page 31 

K. Board Members Comments 

L. Adjourn 

 



Naples Daily News 
June 8, 2020 
Miscellaneous Notices 

NOTICE OF VERONA WALK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT BOARD OF 
SUPERVISORS' REGULAR BOARD MEETING NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the 
Verona Walk Community Development District (the "District") will hold a regular meeting 
(the "Meeting") of its Board of Supervisors (the "Board") on June 18, 2020, at 10:00 a.m. 
to be conducted by telephonic and video conferencing communications media 
technology pursuant to Executive Orders 20-52, 20-69, and 20-112 issued by Governor 
DeSantis on March 9, 2020, March 20, 2020, and April 29, 2020, respectively, and 
pursuant to Section 120.54(5)(b)2, Florida Statutes. The Meeting is being held for the 
necessary public purpose of considering the Fiscal Year 2020/2021 Proposed Budget 
and agenda items related to the District. At such time the Board is so authorized and 
may consider any business that may properly come before it. While it is necessary to 
hold the Meeting utilizing communications media technology due to the current COVID-
19 public health emergency, the District fully encourages public participation in a safe 
and efficient manner. Participants may attend the Meeting by accessing the District's 
website, www.veronawalkcdd.org and clicking on the meeting link you will find on the 
homepage, or utilizing the following login information: Join by ZOOM ACCESS at: 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/88907697138 Meeting ID: 889 0769 7138 Dial In at: 1 929 
436 2866 A copy of the agenda for the Meeting may be obtained at the offices of the 
District Manager, c/o Special District Services, Inc., at (561) 630-4922 or 
kdailey@sdsinc.org (the "District Manager's Office") during normal business hours. The 
Meeting is open to the public and will be conducted in accordance with the provisions of 
Florida law for special districts. The Meeting may be continued to a date, time, and 
place to be specified on the record at the Meeting. Any person requiring special 
accommodations in order to access and participate in the Meeting because of a 
disability or physical impairment should contact the District Manager's Office at least 
forty-eight (48) hours prior to the Meeting. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please 
contact the Florida Relay Service by dialing 7-1-1, or 1-800-955-8771 (TTY) / 1-800-
955-8770 (Voice), for aid in contacting the District Manager's Office. As indicated above, 
this Meeting will be conducted by media communications technology. Anyone requiring 
assistance in order to obtain access to the telephonic, video conferencing, or other 
communications media technology being utilized to conduct this Meeting should contact 
the District Manager's Office at least forty-eight (48) hours prior to the Meeting. 
Similarly, any person requiring or that otherwise may need assistance accessing or 
participating in this Meeting because of a disability or physical impairment is strongly 
encouraged to contact the District Manager's Office at least forty-eight (48) hours in 
advance so that arrangements may be made. Each person who decides to appeal any 
decision made by the Board with respect to any matter considered at the Meeting is 
advised that person will need a record of proceedings and that accordingly, the person 
may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made, including the 
testimony and evidence upon which such appeal is to be based. District Manager 
VERONA WALK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT www.veronawalkcdd.org 
June 8, 2020 #4219960 

 

Page 1



 

Page 1 of 4 
 

VERONA WALK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

FEBRUARY 20, 2020 
 
 
A. CALL TO ORDER 
 
The February 20, 2020, Regular Board Meeting of the Verona Walk Community Development 
District was called to order at 10:00 a.m. in the Town Center at Verona Walk located at 8090 Sorrento 
Lane, Naples, Florida 34114.  
 
B. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
C. PROOF OF PUBLICATION 
 
Proof of publication was presented that notice of the Regular Board Meeting had been published in 
the Naples Daily News on October 7, 2019, as part of the District’s Fiscal Year 2019/2020 Regular 
Meeting Schedule, as legally required.  
 
D. ESTABLISH A QUORUM 
 
It was determined that the attendance of the following Supervisors constituted a quorum and it was 
in order to proceed with the meeting: 
 
Chairperson Diann Cucinella Present 
Vice Chairman Patrick Clifford Present 
Supervisor Marilyn Czubkowski Present 
Supervisor Jack Hogan  Present 
Supervisor Michael J. Doyle Present 

 
Staff members in attendance were: 
 
District Manager Kathleen Meneely Special District Services 
General Counsel Greg Urbancic Coleman Yovanovich 

Koester 

District Engineer Terry Cole Hole Montes, Inc. 
Field Inspector Bohdan Hirniak  

 
Also present was District resident Joe Cucinella. 
 
E. ADDITIONS OR DELETIONS TO THE AGENDA 
 
There were no additions or deletions to the agenda. 
 
F. COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC FOR ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA 
 
There were no comments from the public for items not on the agenda. 

Page 2



 

Page 2 of 4 
 

 
G. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 1.  January 16, 2020, Regular Board Meeting  
 
The January 16, 2020, Regular Board Meeting minutes were presented for approval.   
 
A motion was made by Ms. Czubkowski, seconded by Mr. Hogan and passed unanimously approving 
the minutes of the January 16, 2020, Regular Board Meeting, as presented.   
 
H. OLD BUSINESS 
 
There were no Old Business items to come before the Board. 
 
I. NEW BUSINESS  
 1.  Consider Resolution No. 2020-01 – Establishing Policies and Procedures for ACC 
Process 
 
Resolution No. 2020-01 was presented, entitled: 
 

   RESOLUTION NO. 2020-01 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF 
VERONA WALK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
ESTABLISHING POLICIES AND PROCEDURES FOR 
APPROVING ARCHITECTRUAL CONTROL COMMITTEE 
APPLICATIONS FROM VERONA WALK HOMEOWNERS 
ASSOCIATION, INC. DIRECTLY IMPACTING DISTRICT 
PROPERTY; AUTHORIZING THE CHAIR OR THE VICE 
CHAIR (IN THE CHAIR’S ABSENCE) OR THE DESIGNEE OF 
EITHER TO REVIEW AND APPROVE ON BEHALF OF THE 
DISTRICT ARCHITECTRUAL CONTROL COMMITTEE 
APPLICATIONS FROM VERONA WALK HOMEOWNERS 
ASSOCIATION, INC. DIRECTLY IMPACTING DISTRICT 
PROPERTY; PROVIDING FOR PRESENTATION OF 
APPROVED ARCHITECTRUAL CONTROL COMMITTEE 
APPLICATIONS FROM VERONA WALK HOMEOWNERS 
ASSOCIATION, INC. DIRECTLY IMPACTING DISTRICT 
PROPERTY FOR INFORMATIONAL PURPOSES TO THE 
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS; AND PROVIDING AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
Ms. Czubkowski advised that she had met with the ACC this past Tuesday and handed out a summary 
of the discussions that were held.  She went over the process for reviewing ACC Applications, which 
will be forwarded to the Field Inspector.  Regarding documentation and insurance, she explained that 
the HOA would not secure these documents for the CDD, but the Field Inspector may request 
additional information from the homeowner.  Regarding deposits, the CDD will still request time to 
approve the release of deposits, as a rain event is needed in order to determine if repairs were properly 

Page 3



 

Page 3 of 4 
 

made.  She added that the ACC does not want to hold up deposits.  Mr. Urbancic suggested sending 
a response back to the HOA of the CDD’s requirements. 
 
Mrs. Cucinella felt that this was an ineffective measure, as the ACC and HOA do not want to 
cooperate.  Mr. Urbancic still felt it was worthwhile to speak with their attorney, as he feels the 
District’s requests are reasonable, but are not being addressed.  There was general discussion 
regarding enforcement and going through a formal rule-making procedure to promulgate such rules.  
Ms. Czubkowski indicated that “the ball” was in the attorney’s court to discuss the issue with the 
HOA attorney, but no other action was taken.   
 
 2.  Consider Resolution No. 2020-02 – Encouraging the HOA to Adopt Rules & 
Enforcement Procedures Regarding Recreational Boating 
 
Resolution No. 2020-02 was presented, entitled: 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2020-02 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF 
VERONA WALK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
ENCOURAGING VERONA WALK HOMEOWNERS 
ASSOCIATION, INC. TO ADOPT RULES AND ENFORCEMENT 
PROCEDURES TO PROHIBIT RECREATIONAL BOATING 
WITHIN THE BOUNDARIES OF VERONA WALK; PROVIDING 
FOR SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR CONFLICTS; AND 
PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
Ms. Meneely advised the records had been searched, but there was nothing in the minutes or any 
action taken by the Board concerning recreational boating in the lakes.  Mr. Urbancic went over the 
considerations in the resolution and indicated that it requests the HOA prepare an amendment to their 
rules.  There was general discussion regarding motorized versus non-motorized vessel use of the lake.  
Mr. Doyle stated bots on these types of lakes was a bad idea.  Mr. Hogan stated he did not want to 
take amenities away from residents and does not see it as a major problem.  Ms. Czubkowski stated 
that she understands prohibiting motorized vessels, but does not believe kayaks and canoes were an 
issue.  Mr. Clifford agreed with Mr. Doyle and noted that there was a liability to the District for 
motorized and non-motorized vessels to be on lakes.  Mrs. Cucinella agreed with Messrs. Hogan and 
Doyle that all the boating activity was a liability.  Ms. Czubkowski asked if SFWMD needed to sign 
off and Mr. Clifford indicated that could be checked.  Mr. Hogan indicated that it order to receive 
approval for a new HOA rule, it would take 951 homeowners to approve. 
 
A motion was made by Mr. Doyle, seconded by Mr. Clifford adopting Resolution No. 2020-02, as 
presented.  Upon being put to a vote, the motion failed 2 to 3 with Mrs. Cucinella, Mr. Hogan and 
Ms. Czubkowski dissenting, as they want definitive answers regarding approvals from the South 
Florida Water Management District and the HOA. 
 
J. ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 
 1.  District Attorney Update 
 

Page 4



 

Page 4 of 4 
 

Mr. Urbancic stated he would keep the Board apprised of any legislative issues that could potentially 
impact the District. 
 
 2.  District Engineer Update 
 
There was no District Engineer update at this time. 
 
 3.  Field Inspector Update 
 
Mr. Hirniak gave a summary on the lake levels and stated that the wildlife and fish life look good.  
He also went over the lake treatments that have taken place recently.  Mr. Hirniak advised of some 
unacceptable work done on Corina by a contractor and noted that he is working with the elderly 
person who had no approvals.  He stated that he was receiving bids for the 240 signs that need 
replacement and is now recommending they all be done at once.  He also recommended replacing the 
golf cart.  Ms. Meneely stated that Mr. Hirniak should get proposals for another golf cart so the funds 
can be added to the upcoming proposed budget.   
 
 4.  District Manager Update 
 a. Financials 
 
Ms. Meneely went over the financials.  There were no questions from the Board Members. 
 
Ms. Meneely advised that the next meeting was scheduled for March 19, 2020.  She also noted that 
the proposed budget would be presented at the April meeting and the final budget public hearing 
would take place in June. 
 
K. BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS 
 
There were no Board Member comments. 
 
L. ADJOURNMENT 
 
There being no further business to come before the Board, the Regular Board Meeting was adjourned 
at 11:04 a.m. on a motion made by Ms. Czubkowski, seconded by Mr. Hogan and passed 
unanimously. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
__________________________________ __________________________________ 
Secretary/Assistant Secretary   Chair/Vice-Chair 

Page 5



1 

   RESOLUTION NO. 2020-01 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF 
VERONA WALK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
DISTRICT ESTABLISHING POLICIES AND PROCEDURES 
FOR APPROVING ARCHITECTRUAL CONTROL 
COMMITTEE APPLICATIONS FROM VERONA WALK 
HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION, INC. DIRECTLY 
IMPACTING DISTRICT PROPERTY; AUTHORIZING THE 
CHAIR OR THE VICE CHAIR (IN THE CHAIR’S 
ABSENCE) OR THE DESIGNEE OF EITHER TO REVIEW 
AND APPROVE ON BEHALF OF THE DISTRICT 
ARCHITECTRUAL CONTROL COMMITTEE 
APPLICATIONS FROM VERONA WALK HOMEOWNERS 
ASSOCIATION, INC. DIRECTLY IMPACTING DISTRICT 
PROPERTY; PROVIDING FOR PRESENTATION OF 
APPROVED ARCHITECTRUAL CONTROL COMMITTEE 
APPLICATIONS FROM VERONA WALK HOMEOWNERS 
ASSOCIATION, INC. DIRECTLY IMPACTING DISTRICT 
PROPERTY FOR INFORMATIONAL PURPOSES TO THE 
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS; AND PROVIDING AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 

 WHEREAS, Verona Walk Community Development District (the “District”) is organized for 
purposes that include ownership and operation of certain infrastructure within or benefiting the residential 
development known generally as Verona Walk; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Verona Walk Homeowners Association, Inc. (the “HOA”) is the community 
association that is formed pursuant to Chapters 617 and 720, Florida Statutes that provides certain private 
community functions throughout Verona Walk including the review and approval of applications from 
property owners for exterior modifications to their properties.  These applications (individually, an 
“Architectural Application” and collectively, “Architectural Applications”) are handled through the HOA’s 
Architectural Control Committee (“ACC”); and  
 

WHEREAS, while the review of Architectural Applications is solely within the purview of the 
HOA and the HOA’s administration of its governing documents, it is acknowledged that various 
Architectural Applications reviewed by the HOA from time to time relate to property located adjacent to, 
or in close proximity with, District property.  And, as a result of work being done pursuant to approved 
Architectural Applications on such properties, the District has experienced adverse, unauthorized impacts 
to District property including, without limitation, owners and/or their contractors entering upon District 
property, staging on District property and/or modifying  District property including lake banks or piping 
entering lakes; and  

 
WHEREAS, in order safeguard the District’s property, the HOA and District have established a 

process for the District to receive notice of, and review, those Architectural Applications that are deemed 
to directly impact or affect District property.  Notwithstanding the same, it is acknowledged that the ACC 
has a limited time period for review of an Architectural Application once submitted under the HOA’s 
governing documents; and 

 

Page 6



2 

WHEREAS, it is not practical, expeditious or economical to arrange and hold meetings of the 
Board of Supervisors (the “Board”) each time an Architectural Application directly impacting or affecting 
District property is received; and  

  
WHEREAS, the Board desires to approve policies and procedures for the review and approval (if 

applicable) of such Architectural Applications and their impacts on District property presented to the 
District by the HOA.   

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF 

VERONA WALK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT: 
 
Section 1. Recitals.  The foregoing recitals are true and correct and incorporated herein as if 

written into the body of this Resolution. 
 
Section 2. Architectural Application Policies and Procedures.  The Architectural 

Application Policies and Procedures attached hereto and made a part of this Resolution as Exhibit “A” are 
hereby approved for use by the District.   

 
Section 3. Authorized Officer.  The Chair or the Vice Chair (in the Chair’s absence) or the 

designee of either is hereby designated by the District and authorized by the District to carry out the policies 
and procedures set forth herein.   

 
Section 4. Continuing Effect.  The policies and procedures attached to this Resolution as 

Exhibit “A” shall stay in full force and effect until such time as the Board may amend or rescind said 
policies, procedures or agreement form(s), as applicable. 

 
Section 5. Subsequent Presentation to the Board.  A copy of any approved Architectural 

Application impacting District Property and any corresponding documents required pursuant to this 
Resolution shall be made available to the Board for informational purposes only at its next regularly 
scheduled meeting following approval; provided, however, that any failure to present said application shall 
not affect the validity or implementation of this Resolution.   

 
Section 6. Severability.  Should any sentence, section, clause, part or provision of this 

Resolution be declared by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, the same shall not affect the 
validity of this Resolution as a whole, or any part thereof, other than the part declared invalid. 

 
Section 7. Conflicts.  All Sections or parts of Sections of any Resolutions or actions of the 

Board in conflict are hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict. 
 
Section 8.  Effective Date.  This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon adoption. 
 
 

{Remainder of page intentionally left blank.  Signatures appear on next page.} 
 

  
  

Page 7



3 

 PASSED AND ADOPTED at a meeting of the Board of Supervisors of Verona Walk Community 
Development District this 18th day of June, 2020.  

 
 

Attest:   VERONA WALK COMMUNITY  
  DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

 
 
 

         
Kathleen Dailey, Secretary  Diann Cucinella, Chair  
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 8



4 

Exhibit “A” 
Architectural Application Policies and Procedure 

 
 

A. Generally 
 
 1. An “Architectural Application” shall mean any architectural application received 
from Verona Walk Homeowners Association, Inc. (the “HOA”) (or through its Architectural 
Control Committee) for review that may directly impact or affect District property.   
 

2. The District Manager shall develop and establish a form to facilitate the intake of 
requests from the HOA for review of Architectural Applications.  Architectural Applications will 
be reviewed by the Chair or the Vice Chair (in the Chair’s absence) or the designee of either (“the 
“Authorized Officer”) to determine whether District property is proposed to be directly affected 
or impacted and the manner of any such affect or impact.   

 
3. To the extent the Architectural Application is determined by the Authorized Officer 

not to directly impact or affect District property, then no action by the District will be required. 
 

4.  To the extent the Architectural Application is determined by the Authorized Officer 
to directly impact or affect District property, the District reserves the right to withhold or condition 
its approval for any such impact in the Architectural Application based on such considerations as 
safety, scheduling considerations, permit compliance, compliance with rules or polices of the 
District, the proposed type of impact or expected duration, potential for damage or adverse impacts 
or as otherwise may be in the best interests of the District.   
 
 
B.  Insurance and Other Requirements.  
 

1. The District reserves the right through the Authorized Officer to require the 
Architectural Application applicant to supply insurance, security, indemnity and such other 
requirements or assurances as may necessary for the protection of the public health, safety and 
welfare and District property on an case-by-case basis.   

 
2. Insurance for Architectural Applications that involve any use or entry on District 

property shall be provided by the applicant (at the applicant’s sole cost and expense) at the 
discretion of the Authorized Officer reviewing the Architectural Application based upon the nature 
and extent of the activity to occur on the District’s property.  Except as otherwise designated or 
modified by the Authorized Officer, the applicant shall, at its sole expense, obtain and maintain 
comprehensive bodily, personal injury, property damage and liability insurance on a per-
occurrence basis with a minimum limits for liability in an amount of One Million Dollars 
($1,000,000) per Incident and Two Million Dollars ($2,000,000) Aggregate, which shall include a 
loss payable clause in favor of the District, naming the District as an Additional Insured under the 
policy, and shall provide the District evidence of such insurance prior to the Architectural 
Application.  Such insurance shall be cancelable only upon forty-five (45) days prior written notice 

Page 9



5 

to the District.  Evidence of automobile and/or worker’s compensation insurance may also be 
required in circumstances deemed appropriate by the Authorized Officer.   

 
3. A deposit (or other form surety protection) in an amount determined by the 

Authorized Officer based upon the type of use or impact on the District property and other such 
factors deemed relevant by the Authorized Officer may be required for the District’s approval.  
When applicable, to receive a full refund of the deposit the District property must be free from 
garbage, litter and debris, the, there must be no damage to the District’s facilities or other District 
property, and any approved installations impacting District property must have been completed in 
accordance with District policies and procedures.  Failure to comply with the policies and 
procedures of the District may result in the forfeiture of all or a portion of the deposit.  After full 
completion of the applicable project, the District shall have the right, in its sole discretion, to apply 
the deposit to pay for the cost of cleaning, repair, restoration or any other applicable corrective 
action.  The District Manager shall determine the amount of the deposit to return, if any.  If the 
cost of any cleaning, repair, restoration or other applicable corrective action exceeds the amount 
of the deposit, the applicant that submitted the Architectural Application will be liable for any such 
further expenses incurred by the District and said funds shall be paid to the District upon demand.  
 

4. Indemnification.   Each Architectural Application applicant and its contractor, if 
applicable, proposing to use District property in any manner will be required to indemnify and 
hold harmless the District and its supervisors, officers, agents and employees from any and all 
liability, claims, actions, suits or demands by any person, corporation or other entity, for injuries, 
death, property damage of any nature, arising out of, or in connection with, the use of the District’s 
property or facilities, including litigation or any appellate proceedings with respect thereto.  Each 
applicant and its contractor, if applicable, shall be required to sign an agreement in a form provided 
by the District providing for such release and indemnification of the District.  Nothing therein shall 
constitute or be construed as a waiver of the District’s sovereign immunity granted pursuant to 
Section 768.28, Florida Statutes. 
 
  

 

Page 10



1 

 

VeronaWalk Homeowners Association and VeronaWalk 
Community Development District Procedures and Guidelines 

for Sediment Control, Water Diversion and Infrastructure 
Restoration 

 
In addition to the ACC submittal requirements for projects falling under these 
Procedures and Guidelines, the CDD requires the following: 

1. A copy of the application be provided to the CDD Field Inspector for review 
and approval. 

2. A copy of the Contractor’s License and general liability insurance naming 
Verona Walk Community Development District as additional insured and 
otherwise meeting the District’s insurance requirements. 

3. The surety deposit made by the owner will be retained by the Association 
until the CDD Field Inspector determines that the the bank is stabilized. (See 
Section 6. Land and Bank Restoration. 6.7 Debris Deposit)  
 

 
Table of Contents 
 
1. Sediment Control 

1.1 Silt Fence 
1.2 Storm Water Inlet Barriers 
1.3 Guideline Violations 

 
2. Private Property Lot Line, Boundary Infringements, Common Area, 

Retention Ponds, and Adjoining Properties 
 
3. Water Diversion (General),  Roof Runoff, Overflow from Pool, and Runoff 

from Pool Deck Area 
 
4. Water Diversion – Inlet Drainage Pipe 

4.1 Inlet to Drainage Pipe 
 
5. Water Diversion – Outflow of Drainage Pipe  

5.1 Bubbler System 
5.2 Direct Drainage into Retention Ponds 

 
6. Restoration 
 
7. Infrastructure 
 
8. Violation Notice  
 

Page 11



2 

 

 

 

1. Sediment Control 
 

1.1 Silt Fence (Fig. 1.1) 
 
Silt fencing must be installed around all excavated loose materials (dirt) and un-
stabilized areas (lawn disruption) to prevent soil migration and sediment from 
entering the retention ponds and surrounding stabilized areas. 

1.1.1 Install before land is disturbed 
1.1.2 Install on down slope side parallel to contour of land 
1.1.3 Stake post to be placed on downhill side of silt fence 
1.1.4 Extend ends up slope enough to allow water to the retention ponds 

behind fence 
1.1.5 Turn ends of fence uphill 
1.1.6 Leave no gaps 
1.1.7 Inspect and repair once a week and after every ½ inch of rain 
1.1.8 Maintain until a lawn is established 

 

Page 12



3 

 

 
 

Typical Installation of a Slit Fence     Fig. 1.1 
  

Page 13



4 

 

1.2 Storm Water Inlet Barriers (Sediment Control) 
 
1.2.1 Sediment barriers must be placed on all storm water gutter inlets 

leading to the retention ponds. 
1.2.2 Inspect and repair once a week and after every ½ inch of rain 
1.2.3 Remove only after project is finished 

 
1.3 Guideline Violations (VeronaWalk Homeowners Association) 

 
1.3.1 Improper Installation or lack of installation of silt fence and inlet 

barriers 
1.3.2 Failure  to adhereing to inspection/maintenance schedule 
1.3.3 Failure to repair silt fence or barriers after damage or ½ inch of rain 
1.3.4 Premature removal 

 
2. Private Property Lot Line, Boundary Infringements, Common Area, 

Retention Ponds, and Adjoining Properties 
 
2.1 All excavated soil and materials must be contained within the private 

property lot line boundaries. 
2.2 Any boundary infringement on common area must be approved have the in writing 

by the written permission of the Homeowners’ Association/Architectural Control Committee 
before the project commences and any boundary infringement on property 
owned by CDD or easements held by the CDD must be approved in 
writing by the CDD through the CDD’s Field Inspector before the project 
commences. 

2.3 In addition, any boundary infringement on adjoining properties must 
contain written permission from affected property owners. 

2.4 Loose material must be contained by using erosion control requirement as 
previously defined. 

2.5 All affected areas must be restored to their original condition. 
 

3. Water Diversion (General), Roof Runoff, Overflow from Pool, and Runoff 
from Pool Deck Area 

 
 The VeronaWalk recorded documents 16.5 ---- “no Person may alter the natural 

drainage on any Unit so as to materially increase the storm water into adjacent 
portions of VeronaWalk without the consent of the Owner of the affected 
property.” 

 
3.1 The preferred method of storm water drainage is by the natural contoured 

landscape provided in VeronaWalk. 
3.2 Water diversion should not adversely impinge on neighboring property, 

Common Areas, and the Retention Ponds. 

Page 14



5 

 

3.3 All drainage systems must have HOA/ACC approval.  The application 
must include details of the system and show lot line boundaries. 

3.4 After application submittal, inspection and approval by the HOA/ACC and 
CDD Field Inspector is necessary before work is approved and 
commencedstarted. 

4. Water Diversion – Inlet to Drainage Pipe 
 
All types of water diversion systems; stand alone or in conjunction with a pool or 
extended screen enclosure; require HOA/ACC approval.  The systems require 
HOA/ACC and CDD Field Inspector inspection for compliance with HOA 
regulations and standards. 

 
4.1 Inlet to Drainage Pipe 
 

4.1.1 Directed water flow from the house gutter downspouts and pool 
area can be to a drainage pipe, terminated to a Grass Discharge 
System “Bubble Drain” or directly into a Retention Pond. 

4.1.2 The water may be directly connected to the drainpipe or through a 
grated junction inlet box. (Fig 4.2) 

 

     
 
Direct Connection      Inlet Box with a Grate 
 

Fig 4.2 Drainage Pipe Connection 
 
 
 

5. Water Diversion - Outflow of Drainage Pipe 
  

There is typically 20 feet of upland open area Common Areas between the 
homeowners’ property line and the Retention Ponds to allow for pond and pond 

Page 15



6 

 

bank maintenance.  This area is for absorption of water from lawn areas and to 
minimize sediment into the ponds. All owners should avoid any diversion of water 
that may result in washouts in this area.  
 
 

 
 

5.1 Grass Discharge System or “Bubble System”   Fig. 5.1 
 

5.1.1 It is preferred that the system is terminated within the private 
property lot lines. 

5.1.2 A minimum of 10 foot radius of flat lawn area is required for water 
runoff at the Bubble System termination. 

5.1.3 No Bubbler System is allowed on the banks of a Retention Pond or 
within 10 feet of a slope grade change to the Retention Pond. 

5.1.4 The HOA/ACC application must show the exact system layout 
including property lines. 

5.1.5 Any extension beyond the owner’s property lines would be 
considered and approved by the Association and the CDD, as 
applicable, only in the case of a hardship not caused by the 
applicant.  Applicant is required to provide explanation of hardship.  

5.1.6 A Grate or Pop up drain valve termination is to be used when 
installing a Bubbler System. (Fig.  5.1.6) 

 

           
 
                Grate Termination   Pop Up Drain Valve Termination 
 
                 “Bubble System” End Termination   Fig. 5.1.6 

Page 16



7 

 

 
5.1.7 The termination must be level with the lawn to prevent damage 

when mowing 
5.1.8 The drainage pipe and termination must be covered by 8 to 10 

inches of compacted soil and sod, at the level of the surrounding 
landscape.  This must be done as soon as possible to prevent 
erosion. 

 

 
 

Grass Discharge System or Bubble System Fig. 5.1 
  
 
  
 
5.2 Direct Drainage into Retention Ponds   Fig. 5.2 

 
  5.2.1 Drainage pipes extending in to the ponds must be below the low 

water level for esthetic reasons and to reduce bank erosion during 
heavy outflow.  After the HOA/ACC Application is approved, the 
CDD Field Inspector will determine the low water level, at which 
time, the pipe can be extended into the pond.  The exact 
level/depth at which the pipe can be extended will be governed by 
specific site/location condition which will be approved by the CDD 
Field Inspector. 

Page 17



8 

 

5.2.2 The pipe extension into the pond must be surrounded by 3 to 5 
inches of Rip Rap to stabilize the pipe and minimize erosion at low 
water level or outflow. 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 

TYPICAL POND DRAIN PIPE INSTALLATION Fig. 5.2 
 
 

 
6. Land and Bank Restoration 

  
6.1 The land must be restored to its original contour and conditions prior to 

installation. 
6.2 Any disturbance to the Retention Pond bank must be properly restored, as 

soon as possible, to prevent erosion. 
6.3 If the disturbance is in the lawn area, the excavated material can be used 

as fill if it is suitable for sod planting and growth. 

Page 18



9 

 

6.4 Excavated material may be used on the Pond slope, if suitable for sod 
planting and growth.  Bare stabilized banks can use the excavated 
material as long as it is compactable and minimizes erosion 

6.5 Fig. 6.5 shows materials, if excavated materials are not suitable. 
6.7 The application fee debris surety deposit will not be returned to the 

owner until the HOA/ACC and CDD Field Inspector approved the drainage 
system and restoration. Because the integrity of the pond bank can only 
be reviewed after a sufficient rain event(s),  

 Tthe CDD Field Inspector will approve the release only after there 
have been sufficient rains in the CDD’s discretion to determine 
whether if the bank is stable. 

 

 
 

Typical Land Restoration Fig. 6.5 
 
 

7. VeronaWalk Infrastructure Damage 
 
The infrastructure belongs to VeronaWalk per the HOA Documents and the 
repair cost can be billed to the homeowner. 
 
7.1 The homeowner is responsible for any infrastructure damage to roads, 

sidewalks, cable, phone electrical service, sprinklers, trees, shrubs, grass, 
and the like on land designated as Common Area or adjacent property 
during work performed on any site. 

7.2 It is recommended that a damage clause be noted in the contract, for work 
to be done by a contractor, reimbursing the property owner for any 
infrastructure damage and repairs. 

Page 19



10 

 

7.3 Any infrastructure damage should be noted by a HOA Representative, 
CDD Field Inspector or adjacent property owner and should be 
immediately reported to the HOA office. 

7.4 The HOA/ACC approved application will be held open and fee withheld 
until all damage is repaired or total repair cost assessed to the property 
owner is paid. 

 
 

8. Violation Notice 
 

Violations to the guidelines, as determined by an HOA Representative or the 
CDD Field Inspector, must be rectified the next working day or within 24 hours of 
notification or work will be stopped until the violation is corrected. 

Page 20



1 

RESOLUTION NO. 2020-02 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF 
VERONA WALK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
ENCOURAGING VERONA WALK HOMEOWNERS 
ASSOCIATION, INC. TO ADOPT RULES AND 
ENFORCEMENT PROCEDURES TO PROHIBIT 
RECREATIONAL BOATING WITHIN THE BOUNDARIES OF 
VERONA WALK; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; 
PROVIDING FOR CONFLICTS; AND PROVIDING FOR AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
WHEREAS, Verona Walk Community Development District (the “District”) is a community 

development district that was organized for purposes that include ownership and operation of certain 
infrastructure within or benefiting the residential development known generally as Verona Walk; and  

 
WHEREAS, Verona Walk Homeowners Association, Inc. (the “HOA”) is a community 

association formed pursuant to Chapters 617 and 720, Florida Statutes that provides certain private 
community functions throughout Verona Walk and is primarily responsible for the enforcement of certain 
covenants, conditions and restrictions within Verona Walk; and  

 
WHEREAS, Verona Walk contains numerous lakes and ponds that serve primarily a stormwater 

management function; and  
 
WHEREAS, for purposes of maintaining the proper operation of the community’s stormwater 

management system, maintaining the aesthetics of the community’s lakes and ponds and providing for the 
general wellbeing of owners, residents and guests, the Board of Supervisors of the District (the “Board”) 
encourages the HOA to adopt rules and enforcement procedures to prohibit recreational boating within the 
boundaries of Verona Walk.   Recreational boating would include motorized boats as well as such other 
non-motorized boats including canoes and kayaks.   

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF 

VERONA WALK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT: 
 
SECTION 1.  FINDINGS.  The above recitals are true and correct and incorporated herein by this 

reference. 
 
SECTION 2.  RULE ADOPTION RELATING TO RECREATIONAL BOATING.  The 

District hereby requests and encourages the HOA to adopt rules and enforcement procedures to prohibit 
recreational boating within the boundaries of Verona Walk.  Recreational boating would include motorized 
boats as well as such other non-motorized boats including canoes and kayaks.  Such rules should be limited 
to recreational boating and should not restrict boating conducted by the HOA, CDD or their applicable 
contractors for lake or lake bank maintenance.   

 
SECTION 3.  COPY OF THIS RESOLUTION TO HOA.  The District Manager is hereby 

authorized to submit a copy of this Resolution to the HOA to advise the HOA of the District’s request 
relating to the adoption of rules to prohibit recreational boating.   

 
SECTION 4.  SEVERABILITY.  If any section or part of a section of this Resolution be 

declared invalid or unconstitutional, the validity, force and effect of any other section or part of a section 

Page 21



2 

of this Resolution shall not thereby be affected or impaired unless it clearly appears that such other section 
or part of a section of this Resolution is wholly or necessarily dependent upon the section or part of a section 
so held to be invalid or unconstitutional, it being expressly found and declared that the remainder of this 
Resolution would have been adopted despite the invalidity of such section or part of such section. 

 
SECTION 5.  CONFLICTS.  All resolutions or parts thereof in conflict herewith are, to the 

extent of such conflict, superseded and repealed. 
 
SECTION 6.   EFFECTIVE DATE.  This Resolution shall be effective immediately upon its 

adoption. 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED at a meeting of the Board of Supervisors of Verona Walk Community 

Development District this 18th day of June, 2020.  
 
 
 

   VERONA WALK 
   COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT  
Attest:   DISTRICT 

 
 

             
Kathleen Dailey, Secretary  Diann Cucinella, Chair 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 22



RESOLUTION NO. 2020-03 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE VERONA 
WALK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT APPROVING A 
PROPOSED BUDGET FOR FISCAL YEAR 2020/2021; AND PROVIDING 
AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 

 
 WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors (“Board”) of the Verona Walk Community 
Development District (“District”) is required by Chapter 190.008, Florida Statutes, to approve a 
Proposed Budget for each fiscal year; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the Proposed Budget including the Assessments for Fiscal Year 2020/2021 
has been prepared and considered by the Board. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
OF THE VERONA WALK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT THAT: 
 

Section 1. The Proposed Budget including the Assessments for Fiscal Year 
2020/2021 attached hereto as Exhibit “A” is approved and adopted. 
 

Section 2.       A Public Hearing is hereby scheduled for       , 2020  
at  10:00 a.m.  in the Town Center at Verona Walk, 8090 Sorrento Lane, Naples, Florida 34114, 
for the purpose of receiving public comments on the Proposed Fiscal Year 2020/2021 Budget. 
 
 

PASSED, ADOPTED and EFFECTIVE this 18th day of June, 2020. 
 

 
ATTEST: VERONA WALK 
 COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
 
 
 
 
By:  By:  
 Secretary/Assistant Secretary Chairman/Vice Chairman 

Page 23



 Verona Walk
  Community Development District

   Proposed Budget For
  Fiscal Year 2020/2021

  October 1, 2020 - September 30, 2021

Page 24



Page 25



Page 26



Page 27



Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



Verona Walk
Community Development District

 Financial Report For
May 2020

Page 31



Page 32



Page 33



Page 34


	Verona Walk Community Development District - March 19, 2020 Regular Board Meeting Book 
	Agenda
	Proof of Publication
	February 20, 2020 Regular Board Meeting Minutes
	Consider Resolution No. 2020-01 – Establishing Policies and Procedures for ACC Process
	Consider Resolution No. 2020-02 – Encouraging HOA to Adopt Rules & Enforcement Procedures Regarding Recreational Boating
	Consider Resolution No. 2020-03 – Adopting a Fiscal Year 2020/2021 Proposed Budget
	Financials




